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Message from the Mayor  

It is my pleasure to present the 2017 Annual Report for the City 
of Dawson Creek. The annual report is a Community Charter 
requirement for local governments, reflecting on the most 
important achievements and major projects of the year just 
ended, and identifying priorities and success indicators for 
2018. The report contains transparent and independently 
audited statements on the City’s fiscal status for the 
information of taxpayers, residents, and other stakeholders to 
whom the City is accountable. The financial reporting processes 
are conducted in accordance with generally accepted Canadian 
auditing standards. This report will highlight the goals the City 
met in 2017 and will provide a glimpse into objectives for 2018 
as Dawson Creek continues to shine as one of the best places in 
British Columbia to live, raise a family, work, play, and invest, 
with a quality of life that cannot be beat! 

The objective of most cities is to build a strong community with 
a vibrant quality of life as the overarching strategic objective.  
Quality of life is about health and happiness for the residents of 
our community.  The foundation of a resource driven economy 
is strong economic opportunities and building upon those in 
partnership with business and industry. The Provincial 
Government supports the development of a community 
providing support for Health and Education Services along with 
social programs and assistance with public safety with policing 
partnerships. 
 
The City builds core services and infrastructure such as, water, 
sewer, public safety (policing, fire protection), building 
inspection and bylaw enforcement to name a few.  The 
amenities for arts and culture, recreation, parks and 
playgrounds, transportation, airports and public transit, all build 
on the direction of a strong and vibrant quality of life.   
 
We have been continuing to build upon our core services in 
2017 with projects such as; the trucked waste handling facility, 
construction of a new raw water reservoir, the 10th street bridge 
replacement, the RV Sani Dump, and the Drainage Master Plan 
to name a few.  2017 also provided us a new airline that utilizes 
the Dawson Creek Airport, Integra Air with direct flights to 
Calgary weekly.   

Continued………… 

Mayor Dale Bumstead 
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These are all examples of how we strive to continue to build a 
strong community.   
 
Another major asset to our community that helps us to strive 
for a vibrant quality of life is the Encana Events Centre, as they 
continue to bring an immense amount of incredible 
performances and events to our community.  In 2017 the 
Encana Event Centre hosted many major events such as; Dierks 
Bentley, FMX, Sum 41, Thomas Rhett, Dean Brody, Bob Dylan 
and World Under 17 Hockey Challenge to name a few.   
 
Transportation is key to the success of a community and 
Dawson Creek has molded into a transportation hub over the 
past couple years.  With the addition of another airline in 2017 
we are able to offer multiple flights in and out of our 
community, making our city more accessible.  Another key to 
success is having a strong event and sport tourism strategy to 
be able to monopolize on opportunities that present 
themselves and strengthen the economy.  For example, in 2017 
we were able to host the world once again with the World 
Under 17 Hockey Challenge, which proved to be another huge 
success with a strong economic impact both regionally and 
provincially.   

In 2018, we will continue to build on our strategic objective of 
building a strong community with a vibrant quality of life.  
Thank you to Council, Staff and the great residents who 
continue to be an integral part of building our community.    

 

Dale Bumstead 
Mayor  
 
 

  

Did You Know? 

In 2017, Mayor Bumstead attended: 

22 interviews with CJDC 
31 PRRD meetings  

He also took 13 trips to promote the 
City of Dawson Creek and build on 
economic development initiatives.  

Jodi Simmons 
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Mayor and Council 

Mayor and Council were elected in the 2014 Local Government 
Election for a 4-year term to provide leadership and establish 
policies and priorities for the community.    

Council meets two times per month except for July, August and 
September when they meet only once per month.  The second 
meeting of every month is a scheduled Committee of the Whole 
where General Managers share department highlights with 
Council and the public.  All meetings are held on a Monday 
starting at 8:30 am in Council Chambers at City Hall. 

 
Front: Councillor Shaely Wilbur, Councillor Cheryl Shuman    
Middle: Councillor Paul Gevatkoff, Mayor Dale Bumstead,  
 Councillor Terry McFadyen    
Back:  Councillor Charlie Parslow, Councillor Mark Rogers   

Did You Know? 

Council has six types of meetings 
that the Mayor chairs: 
 

Regular Council  
Regular Council with Committee of the 
Whole  
Closed Council  
Public Hearings  
Public Consultations 
Budget Meetings  
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2017 Council Meeting Schedule 

* Committee of the Whole 

January 9 Regular Meeting  

 9 Public Hearing  

 23 Regular Meeting * 

February 6 Regular Meeting 

 6 Budget Meeting  

 20 Regular Meeting * 

 20 Public Consultation  

 20 Public Hearing 

 20 Budget Meeting 

March 6 Regular Meeting 

 20 Regular Meeting * 

 20 Budget Meeting 

 20 Public Hearing  

April 3 Regular Meeting 

 24 Regular Meeting * 

 24 Budget Meeting* 

May 8 Regular Meeting 

 8 Public Hearing  

 8 Public Hearing  

 10 Special Meeting   

 29 Regular Meeting *   

June 12 Regular Meeting 

 26 Regular Meeting * 

July 17 Regular Meeting 

August 8 Special Meeting 

 21 Regular Meeting 

 21 Public Hearing  

September 11 Regular Meeting 

 11 Public Hearing   

 

 

October 2 Regular Meeting 

 16 Special Meeting 

 23 Regular Meeting * 

 23 Public Hearing 

 23 Public Consultation 

November 6 Regular Meeting 

 20 Regular Meeting * 

December 4 Regular Meeting 

 14 Special Meeting  

 18 Regular Meeting * 

Did You Know? 

City Council Meetings are open for 
the public to attend. Council 

welcomes interested residents to 
come and take in a meeting and see 

how your municipal  
government works.  

If you are unable to attend in person, 
you can watch meetings online at 

dawsoncreek.ca/video 



 

Message from the Chief Administrative Officer 

The Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Dawson Creek serves Council directly and acts as the 
primary liaison between staff, the Mayor’s Office and City Council.   

The City of Dawson Creek Annual Report contains a summary of the departmental highlights which have 
taken place during a busy and productive 2017.  While we continue to provide core services to our 
citizens, the management team and staff continue to undertake a number of initiatives and services 
identified in Council’s Strategic Plan.   

Many changes took place in 2017 within the organization, including a new CAO and reorganization of 
the management structure (as seen on page 15).  The reorganization was implemented to allow for 
more opportunities for employees to be able to grow and diversify within the organization.  The City 
transitioned from Director led departments to larger operating units led by General Managers. These 
changes will enable the City to take a proactive and strategic approach to the opportunities presented 
now and anticipated in the future, as well as help with recruitment and retention of key positions.  

In 2017 we were once again able to host the World Under 17 Hockey Challenge, which was again a huge 
success.  It is through events and opportunities such as this that we are able to bring together the 
community and leave an everlasting impact.  Events such as these have a huge economic impact for our 
region and we continue to see the legacy that is left behind from  international events such as this. 

I am looking forward to 2018 where we will continue to take advantage of many opportunities and work 
to offset the cost of inflation through an in depth review of efficiencies and opportunities.   

 
Duncan Redfearn 
Chief Administrative Officer  
 
  

Candice Kalinczuk  
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Strategic Plan 2015 – 2018 

 

Actions 

  A. Fiscal Responsibility and Sustainability 

Council adopt a Corporate Vision reflecting their 
strategic focus 
 Council develop a clear statement of purpose 

for the Fiscal Gap Initiative 
• Council develop core values/guiding principles 

for the Fiscal Gap Initiative 
• Council establish targets for buy-in by internal 

and external stakeholders for the Fiscal Gap 
Initiative 

• Council review in detail the City Services Policy 
 Council pursue an extension to the Fair Share 

M.O.U. 
• Staff develop for Council and the Community 

educational materials relative to the Fiscal Gap 
Initiative 

B. Quality Sustainable Infrastructure 

• Staff continue the Tangible Capital Assets 
project 

• Council review and approve Phase II of the 
Tangible Capital Assets Management Plan 

C. Community Development and Quality of Life 

 Staff provide a process map, timeline and 
budget for a review/update of the Official 
Community Plan in 2016 

D. Vibrant and Diversified Economy 

 Council review current commitments for the 
Tourism Sector 

 Council review the contract with Global 
Entertainment 

 Staff provide Council detail regarding current 
economic development efforts of the City 

 Council consider establishing a position to 
oversee economic development (EDO) for the 
2016 budget year 

E. Organizational Capacity 

 No action in 2015 
 Staff develop an organizational needs 

assessment coupled with a retention and 
succession plan in 2016 

 

Corporate Vision 

The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek will 
be a forward looking, honest, respectful, fair, 
accessible and collaborative government that 
prides itself on responsive fiscal stewardship and 
holds the trust and confidence of the community. 

Focus Area 

Fiscal Responsibility and Sustainability 
Quality Sustainable Infrastructure 
Community Development and Quality of Life 
Vibrant and Diversified Economy 
Organizational Capacity 
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Vision, Mission & Guiding Principles 

Community Vision Statement 

Dawson Creek will be a visionary community that works together for innovative social, cultural, 
economic and environmental vitality. 

Mission Statement 

The Corporate Mission of the City of Dawson Creek is to provide excellence in service and leadership 
that promotes a dynamic community within a healthy environment for all generations. 

Candice Kalinczuk  
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Guiding Principles 

  

Trust and Integrity 

We will have a reputation for acting with 
integrity and will earn the trust of our 
stakeholders by: 

• Keeping promises. 
• Pledging to align our actions with the 

guiding principles that support our 
vision. 

• Modeling competence and anchoring 
behaviour on enduring values. 

• Communicating with care and respect. 
• Working to develop positive 

relationships. 
• Sharing information in timely and 

comprehensive ways. 

Inclusivity 

We will create an invitational climate by: 

• Ensuring all individuals have equal 
access to services and opportunities 
for success. 

• Seeking ways to reflect and celebrate 
the diversity of our community and 
ensuring physical accessibility. 

• Engaging people in issues that directly 
affect them. 

• Maintaining and strengthening our 
links to the First Nations, Aboriginal 
and Metis populations. 

• Making literacy concerns a core 
component of communication 
strategies. 

Creativity 

We will foster a culture of creativity, innovation, and 
learning by: 

• Encouraging cooperative and collaborative 
thinking. 

• Employing open dialogue and wide input 
into decision making and planning. 

• Supporting risk taking and challenging 
conventional practices. 

• Including learning opportunities in all 
actions. 

Health 

We will optimize opportunities for healthy living by: 

• Developing an environment free from undue 
risk. 

• Providing opportunities to enhance physical, 
emotional, and spiritual well-being. 

• Enhancing the cleanliness and aesthetic 
appearance of our community. 

• Promoting physical activity. 

Governance 

We will strive to make decisions that reflect the 
needs and desires of our community by: 

• Providing opportunities for engaged, active 
citizens to help create and participate in 
developing solutions for pressing issues. 

• Encouraging a wide range of agencies and 
citizens to take a meaningful role in decision-
making.  
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Guiding Principles (continued) 

  Modern Economy 

We will strengthen the community’s economic 
vitality by: 

• Establishing a climate that encourages 
responsible economic development. 

• Honouring small and big business 
partnerships and contributions. 

• Focusing on and promoting the 
opportunities for economic development 
that are inherent in our community and 
region. 

• Encouraging projects that serve the local 
community and enhance regional self-
sufficiency in areas such as power, general 
supply, and food. 

Lifestyle 

We will nurture engagement in a collective sense of 
belonging and contribution by: 

• Celebrating arts, heritage and culture. 
• Creating recreational opportunities. 
• Providing opportunities for life-long learning. 
• Optimizing transportation and movement 

around the city. 
• Working to reduce crime rates and 

opportunities for crime in our community. 

Excellence 

We will achieve excellence in all our  
endeavours by: 

• Incorporating principles of excellence in 
all our actions. 

• Developing shared goals to serve the 
long-term interests of the community. 

• Establishing appropriate measures of 
success and being accountable for the 
level of achievement of shared goals. 

The Environment 

We will demonstrate respect for the future of 
the earth by: 

• Fostering recycling, reuse and reduced 
consumption. 

• Promoting, demonstrating and using 
renewable energy. 

• Advocating for the preservation of clean 
air, clean water and healthy land. 

 

Brenna Schilds 
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Quick Facts 

Population  

Dawson Creek is home to 12,178 people (2016 census), which is an increase of 5.1% over 2011 census 
numbers. 

Climate 

The Peace Lowland ecoregion is 
characterized by a unique climate, 
marked by warmer summers than the 
surrounding areas. The mean annual 
temperature is 0.5°C. The mean 
summer temperature is 15°C and the 
mean winter temperature is -14°C. The 
mean annual precipitation ranges from 
350–600 mm. 

Transportation 

Airport 
Just minutes from downtown, Dawson Creek’s airport 
facilities keep the city and surrounding area connected 
to the world. Integra Air provides direct scheduled 
service to Calgary. Charter services are also available 
through several airlines.  
 
The comfortable, up-to-date terminal provides secure 
and easy access for arriving and departing aircraft. It 
features free Wi-Fi, free parking, no improvement or 
user fees, and a cafe.  

Dawson Creek Regional Airport offers a 5,000-foot 
runway, flight planning, competitive fuel rates, under 
wing camping, hangar and a modern fully operational 
pilots’ lounge without charging general aviation fees.  

Bailey Helicopters, Medivac Services, Civil Air Search 
and Rescue Association, freight services, and corporate 
aircrafts also make use of the Dawson Creek Regional 
Airport. In addition, the Dawson Creek Flying Club offers 
flight training for the adventurous at heart.  
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Highways 

Dawson Creek is centrally located in the Peace Region and is served by several highways, most of which 
meet at the traffic circle at Mile Zero of the Alaska Highway. The iconic metal surveyor statue points 
west down the Alaska Highway (97 North) that leads north to Fort St John, Fort Nelson, and Watson 
Lake. Highway 49 travels east to Spirit River and Fahler, Alberta. Highway 97 South (John Hart Highway) 
travels west to Chetwynd and then south to Prince George. Highway 2 travels southeast to the Alberta 
border where it connects to Highway 43 to Grande Prairie, AB. The Heritage Highway 52 joins Tumbler 
Ridge to Highway 97 South, west of Dawson Creek. 

Road Transportation  

Greyhound Bus Lines operates daily scheduled bus services in all directions.  

There are many trucking companies operating in and around the Dawson Creek area. Long-combination 
commercial transport vehicles (Super-B) have been allowed to travel into BC from AB as far as Dawson 
Creek. Two moving companies have offices within Dawson Creek. There are two taxi companies 
operating within the city limits. 

The City of Dawson Creek operates a municipal transit service through BC Transit. The “drop-floor” 
buses provide easy access for seniors and the physically disabled.  

Railways  

Dawson Creek is connected by CN Rail to Fort Nelson and to the ports of Prince Rupert and Vancouver 
for freight service. CN Rail has reinstated train operations along its Grande Prairie Subdivision between 
Hythe, Alberta and Dawson Creek, BC.  

Sheila Mah 
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Municipal Services & Operations 

The City’s direction is guided by the Dawson Creek Official Community Plan (OCP) adopted in November 
2009, which is a statement of objectives 
and policies to guide decisions on 
planning and land use management 
within the area covered by the plan.  
While the OCP sets the vision for the 
Community, it is the Financial Plan that 
establishes annual priorities.  We are 
currently reviewing our Official 
Community Plan as over the past ten 
years Dawson Creek has seen rapid 
economic growth.  The City has changed 
a lot in the past ten years and we feel 
that it is time to take a look at updating the Official Community Plan.  We are currently drafting the OCP 
with comments and feedback that the community provided.  The first draft is expected in early 2018.   

The City provides a wide range of municipal services to local residents and businesses, including fire 
protection/suppression, emergency management, policing, building inspection, bylaw compliance, 
transit, engineering and public works, refuse collection, planning and development, economic 
development, subsidized recreation programs, sports fields, indoor and outdoor walking paths, a 
swimming pool, arenas, a curling rink, airport and water and sewer utility services. The City is focused on 
maintaining and providing a good quality of life for our citizens while being fiscally responsible. 
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Organizational Chart  
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Corporate Administration 

The Department of Corporate Administration is 
responsible for preparation and preservation of the 
minutes, bylaws and other City records. It ensures that 
all City actions such as Council proceedings, elections 
and land development are conducted in accordance 
with government legislation.  The department is also 
responsible for community economic development 
and communication. 

2017 Goals  

• 2017 World Under 17 Hockey Championships  
• Implement a Performance Appraisal System  
• New Governance Model for Dawson Creek 

Tourism 
• Corporate Wide Filing System   

2017  Highlights  

• 2017 World Under 17 Hockey Challenge was definitely a 
success story with another huge economic impact of 
1.27 million dollars in Dawson Creek and Fort St. John.  
Our marker for success was ticket sales in comparison 
with 2015, and overall we surpassed the 2015 ticket 
sales in 2017 by approximately $6,000 making the 
event an overall success.   

• A new Human Resources Manager position was created 
and Mr. John MacArthur was successfully recruited to 
fill the position just prior to the end of the year.   
Following an assessment of the City’s human resources 
needs, Mr. MacArthur will set new goals for 2018.  

• Council selected Spectra Venue Management as the 
new service provider for Tourism Dawson Creek.  The 
transition was smooth and the City looks forward to see 
what’s in the future for Tourism Dawson Creek.   

• File IT Solutions was awarded the City’s records 
management contract and following a city wide 
assessment, provided options for a new filing system.   
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2018 Goals  

Local General Election 
o All legislated requirements will be met, and efforts to inform potential candidates 

will be increased. 
o Communication efforts will be enhanced in coordination with the Peace River 

Regional District with a view to increase voter turnout. 
o The newly elected Council will be well prepared for their term, following the 

completion of an orientation session held the week before the inaugural meeting. 
Communications Review 

o The City’s 2014 Communication Plan will be reviewed and updated where 
necessary. 

o Attainable and Sustainable guidelines and checklists will be created for both 
internal and external communication needs.  

Corporate Filing System – Implementation 
o A new corporate-wide file management system will be selected and a consultant 

will be hired to assist with its implementation, beginning with files within the 
Corporate Administration Department. 

Agreement Templates Review 
o With legal assistance, new agreement templates will be created; written in plain 

language that will ensure continuity within key areas as directed by Council. 
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Finance 

The Finance Department focuses on five areas to manage the financial transactions for the City: 

1. Financial Planning (budgeting, financial control systems, risk and debt management). 
2. Financial Reporting (completing legislated and monthly reporting to Council and other 

stakeholders). 
3. Financial Processing (receiving money owed to the City and paying the City’s bills). 
4. Stakeholder Management (working with Council, citizens, staff, suppliers and partners). 
5. Reception (Managing customer service inquiries). 

The department's goal is to provide accurate and timely information for informed decision-making and 
to manage the City’s day-to-day financial business with integrity and efficiency. 

2017 Goals 

• Develop and implement a cross training strategy to improve efficiency. 
• Implement a Human Resource and Payroll software program to track and integrate employee 

information.  
• Implement an electronic time sheet program to reduce staff time and improve internal 

customer service.    

2017 Highlights  

• The cross training strategy is in progress. 
• The Human Resource software model will be reviewed in 2018 to support the new HR Manager. 
• The implementation of the timesheet program is in progress and will be presented to city 

departments in stages. 

2018 Goals  

• To implement a new Financial Statement reporting application that will support the organization 
with yearend processes and reporting requirements. 

• To implement a new government reporting tool to support the Local Government Data Entry 
(LGDE) legislated information requirement. 

• Continue to encourage utility account holders, tax payers and vendors to sign up for the 
eStatement and ePayment option. 
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Infrastructure & Development Services  

The Development Services Department enforces the City’s regulatory framework for all new building 
construction and land development within the City, performs required maintenance to the City’s linear 
infrastructure, ensures the highest quality of treated water for the community, and plans and manages 
the City’s linear capital projects. The Department contains the following divisions:  

 Development Services  

o Engineering 

o  GIS 

o Building Inspection 

o Bylaw Enforcement 

o  Planning 

 Roads and Grounds 

 Utilities 

 Water Treatment 

 Capital Projects 
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Development Services  

The Development Services Department enforces the City’s regulatory framework for all new building 
construction and land development within the City.  The department plans and oversees capital 
infrastructure improvements as required.  This department contains the following divisions:  
Engineering, Planning, Building Inspection, Bylaw Enforcement, and GIS. 

2017 Goals  

• Review the Official Community Plan, have the public involved in the spring, create and adopt the 
final draft in the fall and implement it in the winter. 

• 10th St bridge replacements – tender the project in May and complete construction before 
winter.  

• Assist Pouce Coupe with bylaw enforcement – work on a bylaw redraft.  
• Transition CAD to GIS mapping- to be available for external use and to provide access to 

employees out in the field.  
• Implement process improvements in the building department by revising applications, tracking 

service requests and reviewing the building bylaw. 

2017 Highlights 

• Started the 10th Street Bridge Replacement and finished the 15th Street Bridge Replacement. 
• Completed the upgrade to the Alaska Highway Waterline, to provide services to 7 lots.  
• Started the 17th Street sidewalk connection project. 
• Developed a web-based GIS map for easy access to property information. 
• Kicked off the flood mitigation planning process. 
• Gained public engagement through the OCP Festival in July 
• Kicked off the City Reporter Project to move inspection, reports and occupancy permits to a 

digital format. Inspections reports will be sent by email (saving contractors time in keeping 
paperwork organized). 

• Completed the implementation of the Intercommunity business license program.  

2018 Department Goals  

• The city has employed a consultant to perform a risk assessment on the City regarding 
flooding.  This report will be received by May of 2018. 

• Implementation of the Official Community Plan Update – Dawson Creek 2030 – the plan will be 
fully adoption by the end of 2018. 

• The City is updating its Zoning Bylaw. Staff will start to rewrite the bylaw by the end of 2018. 
• Develop a Master GIS Plan for engineering and public works. Apps will be developed so each 

department will be able to access them on the go to suit their needs. Target completion is fall of 
2018 
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• Bylaw Department will audit the current services provided to increase efficiency. This will be 
completed by fall of 2018.  

• The Building Department will create a simplified and streamlined application for accessory 
buildings and small renovations, as well as a simplified, yet more thorough, application and 
checklist for single-family dwellings, tenant improvements and complex projects falling under 
part 3,4,5 and 6 of BC Building Code – updates completed by fall of 2018 

• Development Service Department website updated with new permit applications focused on 
educating the public by clarifying current zoning permit and development related questions – by 
the end of fall in 2018  

• Website updated with a new permit applications section and a development services section 
focused on educating the public by clarifying current zoning permit, and development related 
questions.  

• Fully implementing City reporter – with all permitting completed digitally.   

Engineering Department  
The Engineering Department provides information regarding the City’s assets and infrastructure such as 
construction records, maps, and digital base files to customers such as developers, consultants, and 
contractors as well as other departments within the City. The department also manages and coordinates 
large roadworks capital projects, provides estimates and technical planning services for capital planning, 
and carries out quality assurance measures on processes, procedures, and activities.  
 

Planning Department 
The Planning Division provides current planning and long-range planning services. Current planning 
services involve the provision of procedural advice to developers; processing various applications 
including development permits, zoning amendments, and subdivisions. Long range planning includes 
larger projects such as the Official Community Plan review and the development of the Flood 
Mitigation Plan.   
 

Building Department  
The Building Department ensures that the BC Building Code, as well as the City’s Building, Zoning, Sign, 
Business License and Cross Connection Control Program Bylaws, are maintained and enforced. The 
Building Department works with the public in a concerted effort to attain compliance of City bylaws and 
the BC Building Code, while at the same time striving to give the highest level of customer service.  As 
technology in construction and building materials advances, the Building Department will continue to 
strive in our efforts to keep current and up to date. 
  

Hegge Construction have an excavator onsite to help lift the Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD) rig 
and reposition during boring operations for the forcemain on the 108th Ave lift station project 



 
 

2017 Annual Report 

 

22 

 

Bylaw Enforcement  
Bylaw responds to various bylaw complaints and handles each issue as quickly and in as fair a manner as 
possible. Issues vary from summer to winter. The City is currently working on:  

• Re-examining the Property Maintenance Bylaw pertaining to tall weeds and grass.  
• Updates to the Parks, Sign, Animal Responsibility, and Manufactured Home Park Bylaws. 
• Developing a new Bylaw Officer Policy. 
 

GIS  
The GIS Department ensures that all data is current and spatially correct to produce the most up-to date 
products for our clients in a timely manner. The Department produces quality mapping for City 
departments and external clients and keeps track of new assets. The GIS Department has completed an 
online mapping application to help City employees and external clients access the City’s data from the 
internet in a quick and easy format. Here is a link: https://goo.gl/g7ZcT1  

 

 
 

   

https://goo.gl/g7ZcT1
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Water Treatment 

The Water & Environmental Division is comprised of five areas of practice focused on source water 
management, water treatment, water distribution, wastewater treatment & wastewater collection. The 
Watershed Stewardship Program collects field data related to water quality and water quantity to 
develop relationships required to manage the City’s source water area and provide the cleanest water 
prior to treatment. Dawson Creek’s Class IV Water Treatment Plant has the capacity to treat and 
distribute 9500m3/day. This division is also responsible for the treatment of wastewater and the 
operation of Dawson Creek’s Class III Waste Reclamation Facility, which can treat 4000m3/day of 
municipal wastewater back to non-potable standards for dust control, industrial purposes, and 
irrigation. 

2017 Goals  

• Increase awareness of source water protection by working with stakeholders to develop training 
for erosion control measures, establishing plans and action items for rangeland stewardship, 
and continuing bacteriological sampling throughout the watershed.  

2017 Highlights 

• Murphy Oil committed to providing erosion control training to their employees after 
understanding the difficulties faced with drinking water quality and watershed management in 
the Kiskatinaw River Watershed. 

• Staff took part in multiple meetings with Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations & Rural 
Development (FLNRORD) Range and Major Projects staff to discuss an approach to rangeland 
stewardship within the intake protection zone (550km2 upstream of the City’s intake). 
Information brochures on rangeland stewardship will be completed by staff for disbursement to 
range users. 

• Baseline data was gathered from two water sampling events from 17 sites within the Kiskatinaw 
River Watershed. The parameters sampled for included routine, metals, microbiological, 
hydrocarbons, herbicides and caffeine. 

• The City partnered with FLNRORD to fund a master research project with the purpose to better 
understand the Kiskatinaw River’s flow regime. The City will ultimately receive a flow forecast 
modeling tool that will assist in the prediction and timing of spring freshet; enhancing the ability 
to make the best possible water management decisions. 

• The installation of two real time hydrometric stations for the City’s wastewater outfall and the 
Dawson Creek was completed. The stations will aid in calculating discharge volumes at the City’s 
outfall in relation to the Dawson Creek’s discharge.  
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2018 Goals  

• Update the Source Water Protection Plan. 
• Perform an assessment on the sewer lift stations in Dawson Creek in alignment with Dawson 

Creek’s quality sustainable infrastructure initiative. 
• Develop an organized maintenance plan in an effort to be more economical and fiscally 

responsible.  
• Conduct a condition assessment on the Zone 2 distribution trunk main from the Water 

Treatment Plant to ensure water security for Dawson Creek. 
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Projects 

This Division plans, manages and administers individual improvement, replacement or rehabilitation 
projects. Also, within the scope of this division is infrastructure improvement program development for 
various types of City infrastructure such as roads, water, sewer, storm and street lighting. Projects 
within this division’s ability include smaller operational upgrades to large capital improvements worth 
multiple millions of dollars. The program planning for infrastructure development that this division 
manages is on the scale of 20 to 30 year horizons and beyond. 

2017 Goals  

• Achieve responsible sewer management by constructing the Trucked Waste Receiving Facility, 
completing the RV Sani Dump, continuing sewer upgrades and by commissioning the lift station 
at 17th St. / 108th Ave. 

• Infrastructure upgrades to enhance water security by continuing with the water meter 
replacement program, increasing raw water storage and upgrading the water treatment plant.  

2017 Highlights 

• Hegge Construction Ltd. was awarded the tender for the construction of the Trucked Waste 
Receiving Facility which will be commissioned in March of 2018. 

• Jacobsen Contracting Ltd. was awarded the tender for the construction of the RV Sani Dump and 
it was completed in the summer of 2017. 

• The lift station at 17th St. / 108th Ave. was completed and commissioned in January of 2017 by 
Hegge Construction Ltd. 

• H.F. Nodes Construction Ltd. was awarded the tender for the construction of the raw water 
(South Dawson) reservoir. It is 90% complete and is expected to be completed in the summer of 
2018. 

• The Water Treatment Plant upgrades project has been awarded to Bear Mountain Construction 
Ltd. and the project is expected to be 
completed in September of 2018. 

2018 Goals  

• Execute the road and sidewalk capital 
rehabilitation program. 

• Complete the multi-year water treatment 
upgrade, sewer receiving facility 
construction and raw water storage 
construction projects.  
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Roads & Grounds 

The Roads and Grounds Department provides efficient and effective maintenance of all above ground 
infrastructure, such as roads, parking lots, street lights, and drainage ditches. The department performs 
regular maintenance programs and responds to numerous weather related events each year.  

2017 Goals  

• To efficiently manage the City’s equipment resources and plan timely replacements. 
• To continue the replacement of the City’s downtown streetlight network. 

2017 Highlights 

• The City purchased two new graders complete with snow wings and snow gates; they arrived in 
the fall just in time for winter work. 

• The City took advantage of favorable tender pricing and expanded the maintenance completed 
on the City’s ditch network. 

• Twenty five additional street lights 
were replaced in the downtown core 
with new LED streetlights. 

 

2018 Goals  

• Develop an updated Snow Plow 
Policy for Council consideration. 

• Develop an updated Public Works 
staffing model. 

• Improve the type and the amount of 
information from Public Works to the 
public via social media. 
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Utilities 

The Utilities Division is tasked with the maintenance of the City’s underground infrastructure, which 
includes carrying out preventive maintenance programs and responsive repairs. The City’s underground 
infrastructure can be broken into three systems; water, sanitary, and storm.  The water system consists 
of approximately 161,500m of water mains, 1014 main valves, 484 Fire Hydrants, and 5,808 service 
connections. The sanitary system has 105,000m of gravity sewers, 6,000m of force mains, 1,150 
manholes, and also contains approximately 5,800 service connections. Finally the storm system is 
comprised of 65,000m of storm mains, 628 manholes, and 1,280 catch basins.  

 

2017 Goals  

• Storm Sewer Masterplan to be 
completed 

• Continue water meter replacement 
program 

• Hydro service to the Diversion 
Chamber and sewer bypass placed 
onto the City’s SCADA system. 

2017 Highlights 

• The Storm Sewer Masterplan was 
completed by Opus and a report 
was presented to Council. 

• The Water replacement program was awarded to Neptune Technology Group and 492 meters 
were replaced. 

• The Diversion Chamber was hooked up to Hydro and tied into the City’s SCADA program.  
 

2018 Goals  

• Continue to follow the Sanitary Master Plan for upgrades to Sanitary System. 
• Complete the Sanitary CCTV Program that was initiated in 2012. 
• Initiate the Storm Flushing Program. 
• Revamp the manhole assessment/inspection program. 
• Develop Standard Operating Procedures for work in cemeteries. 
• Develop an updated Cemetery Bylaw. 
• Begin plot layout in the City Cemetery Expansion. 
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Community Services 

The Community Services Department offers a wide spectrum of services ranging from parks and 
facilities, recreation, sustainability and safety.  Community Services framework encompasses an 
umbrella of services from coordinating, conserving, developing, directing, educating, evaluating, 
implementing, improving, managing, planning, and being in compliance with all regulations.  
 
Our key goal is to ensure all City services support personal wellbeing, sustainability and improve the 
quality of life for our citizens. 
  
The Department contains the following divisions:  

 Recreation 
 Recreation Programs & Events 
 Facility and Sportfield Bookings 

 Parks & Facilities 
 Maintains Green Space  
 Horticulture 
 All City Facilities 
 Capital Projects 

 Sustainability and Energy 
 Safety  
 Fire  
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Parks and Facilities 

The Parks and Facilities division of the Community Services Department is responsible for promoting, 
planning, and delivering services that support personal wellbeing and quality of life in the City’s green 
spaces and civic properties.  
 
The City’s Parks staff is responsible for the aesthetics, functionality, and maintenance throughout all City 
parks, sports fields, cemeteries, and other green spaces. Parks staff is also responsible for the overall 
cleanliness of the City by conducting spring cleanup which includes the sweeping of gravel from all 
boulevards, and ongoing garbage removal duties throughout all public areas.  
 
The City’s Facilities staff is responsible for the general care and maintenance of all buildings on civic 
property and the overall operation of City facilities that are not being operated by external or private 
organizations. There are 74 facilities for which staff are responsible to maintain, ranging from  pump 
houses outside of town to buildings including the Arenas, City Hall, RCMP Detachment, Fire Hall, Art 
Gallery, and Calvin Kruk Centre for the Arts. Maintenance responsibilities include the overall interior and 
exterior cleanliness and structural integrity of the buildings as well as the operation of mechanical 
equipment to ensure proper air quality, heating and cooling, refrigeration and other various essential 
building services including plumbing and lighting.  
 

2017 Goals  

• Completion of BC Hydro Garden. 

• Completion of Curling Rink Slab Replacement. 

• Tree Planting Program enhanced in Newby Park. 

2017 Highlights  

• Completed Curling Rink Slab Replacement. 

• Completed Trencher Art Garden Project. 

2018 Goals  

• Identify and implement Parks Program efficiencies and staffing levels. 

• Complete Public Works Building Addition. 

• Complete scope of work for Municipal Building’s Facility Conditions Inventory and Assessment 
and complete a number of assessments on highest priority buildings.   
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Recreation 

The Recreation Department supports healthy lifestyle choices for Dawson Creek citizens, promoting 
active living through recreation opportunities, physical literacy and play.   The Recreation Department 
offers special events and programs: EveryBODY Active, Park ‘n’ Play, Mini Sports, Yoga, Open Family 
Gym, Sports Camps, Adult Volleyball, and a variety of drop-in programs. Events and programming are 
scheduled in City facilities:  Memorial and Kin Arenas, Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre, including the Climbing 
Wall and the Wayne & Bev Dahlen Walking Track, a variety of sports fields, and O’Brien Gymnasium in 
cooperation with our citizens, user groups and community partners.  

  

2017 Goals  

• Conduct fees & charges approval.                       
• Recreation software program replacement 

preparation for 2017. 
• Develop Recreation Service Delivery Model 

working with the Public Good Strategy. 

2017 Highlights  

• Celebrated 1,000,000 Customer at the Kenn 
Borek Aquatic Centre, Makalia Love, on May 
19th. 

• Implemented the Fees &Charges update.  
• Selected a recreation registration software program with the implementation scheduled for 

Spring 2018. 
• Celebrated the 10 year milestone at the Kenn Borek Aquatic Centre. 
• Increased attendance for 2017 at Pool, Recreation and Arena drop-ins. 

2018 Goals  

• Complete implementation and training for new recreation registration software. 
• Complete the implementation of the Recreation Service Model and Public Good Strategy. 
• Increase partnerships and grant opportunities in order to increase community programming. 
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Sustainability and Energy 

The Sustainability and Energy Division promotes the implementation of the 10 Sustainability Goals of 
the City’s Official Community Plan. Working with City departments and community stakeholders to 
foster the transition towards a dynamic community and a healthy environment for all generations 
involves the collecting of information, promoting, planning and delivery of events, projects and 
initiatives to both staff and the community to enhance the quality of life for all. 

2017 Goals  

•  Launch the City’s Sustainable Dawson Creek Facebook page. 

• Reduce the City’s energy consumption and emissions through annual energy saving projects and 
initiatives. 

• Implement the new “Planning for Youth” Climate Leadership Team “Cool-It” Train-the-Trainer 
environmental educational program.   

2017 Highlights  

• “Cool-It” Train-the-Trainer education program was an innovative and highly successful program 
and a big hit in the classroom. 

• Christmas in Dawson Creek (Shop Locally) businesses saw spending within the community 
totaling $177,000.    

• Northeast BC Climate Risk Network was launched together with five (5) other local 
municipalities to explore challenges and opportunities with a changing climate. 

• Energy saving motor controls added to City water pumping system saves enough energy to 
power five (5) homes (50,000 kWh). 

2018 Goals  

• Sustainability Dashboard Framework will be updated with new 

Official Community Plan indicators. 

• Curbside recycling education program will be launched. 

• Implement a building lifecycle plan for energy efficiencies and 

cost effective structure. 

• Planning energy efficiency improvements of City’s wastewater 

lagoon treatment system.  
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Safety 

The Safety Division and the Respect in the Workplace program promote the personal safety, health and 
wellness of each employee of the City of Dawson Creek; the transition towards a safe dynamic 
workplace and a healthy environment by collecting information, planning, promoting and delivery of 
training, projects and initiatives to all staff to enhance the quality of life and safety for all our workers. 

The safety program is the prevention of occupationally induced injuries and illnesses and is our principle 
purpose. The City of Dawson Creek’s safety program and safety committees provide employees a voice 
to ensure all facilities are controlled and maintained, keeping with the highest standards of safety for 
the employees.  

2017 Goals  

•  WorkSafeBC Alternate Measures completed for Confined Space Program. 

•  Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) online platform to be implemented. 

•  Strategic Safety Plan to be developed. 

2017 Highlights  

•  Safety training courses were delivered.   

•  Respect In The Workplace training was a priority for new, young and returning workers hired. 

2018 Goals  

• Establish an Internal Responsibility Framework to foster the creation of a “Safety Attitude” 

among City staff. 

• Implement a Health and Safety Management Framework to develop communications to 

promote hazard identification and controls. 

• Develop a safety information program/new staff orientation program to familiarize staff with 

the City’s safety protocols. 
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Fire Department  

The Fire Department provides a number of services to the City including prevention, education, and in-
service inspections of City businesses including those required for the issuance of new business licenses.  
The Fire Department is also responsible for providing in-service training.   

The Fire Department liaises with the Fire Commissioner’s office when necessary.  The Department is also 
responsible for the issuance of burn permits for burning activities within the City, monitoring many fire 
alarms and security alarms throughout the City, and responding to emergency dispatches from other fire 
departments within the adjacent proximity of the City. 

2017 Goals  

• Fire Station Feasibility Study. 
• Training facility (building) completion.                       
• PRRD tanker truck specifications 

document released.   

2017 Highlights  

• A Fire Station Study was completed in 2017 and a 
Fire Station Report was presented to Council with 
recommendations. 

• The training facility (building) was 
completed and fire fighters used the site 
several times in 2017. 

• Both the PRRD tanker and the City rescue 
truck RFPs were awarded to vendors.  

2018 Goals 

• The new tanker truck will be in service. 
• The new rescue truck will be in service. 
• An unwanted/false alarm strategy will be 

developed.   

.  
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Airport 

The Dawson Creek Regional Airport provides vital services and facilities for 
air carriers, corporate, private, air ambulance (government), courier, 
police, and military aircraft.  

Airport operations and procedures such as: security, safety, bird and 
wildlife control, vehicle and airside access control, airfield maintenance, 
apron control, terminal services, foreign object debris/damage control, 
and aviation fuel monitoring programs are dictated by regulatory 
requirements. We continue to meet and exceed regulatory requirements.   

2017 Goals and Objectives 

• Provide input to further enhance destination location and 
scheduling. 

• Identify and submit capital projects, taking advantage of available funding programs. 
• Continue to support programs that enhance air and passenger traffic. 
• Provide a safe and secure airport for air carrier and traveling public. 

2017 Highlights 

• Received 60% funding from the BC Air Access Program to replace terminal building windows, 
install new terminal walkway covers, replace cement sidewalk and outside lighting upgrades. 

• Received ACAP funding of over one million dollars which allowed the Airport to get a Grader, 
Plow Truck, a Sweeper and a new Runway Condition Reporting System.  

• The new outside terminal and parking lot lighting has improved night operations and the safety of 
the travelling public. 

• A marketing plan was developed and implemented to increase communication and create an 
effective tool to communicate with the community through Facebook and other social media 
platforms.   

2018 Goals and Objectives 

• All eligible projects will be applied for ACAP, BCAAP and other available grants or funding 
opportunities to ensure the City of Dawson Creek reduces costs incurred.  

• Ensure we develop at least one proactive safety report per month and continue to develop on 
our safe and secure record.  

• We will assess our current infrastructure needs semi-annually and ensure we will prioritize the 
projects and enter them into our 5 Year Capital Projects Plan.  

• Continue to entice air carriers to fly out of Dawson Creek whether it be seasonal or all year 
round flights.  

• Continue to improve facilities and services for our partners and potential investors.  
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Royal Canadian Mounted Police 

The Dawson Creek RCMP Detachment is funded primarily by the City of Dawson Creek, and includes 25 
uniformed members, 7 civilian support staff, 3 civilian casual support staff and 12 guards and matrons. 
The detachment building is municipally owned and maintained.  Members of the Dawson Creek 
Detachment provide policing coverage to the municipality as well as to the rural areas surrounding 
Dawson Creek. 

2017 Goals  

• Crime reduction (property crime) - curfew/street checks and as 
well street level enforcement when illegal drugs are involved 
(Possession & Trafficking).   

• Increase of checks and enforcement action. Monitor file numbers 
of property offences for reduction. 

• Organized Crime (drug enforcement) - Increase of checks and 
enforcement action. 

• Police/Community relations – Monitor number of community 
involvement meetings. 

2017 Highlights  

• The focus on curfew and street checks generated many 
apprehensions and convictions of prolific offenders. 

• In the concentration on property offences there were two major 
investigations into possession of stolen property/chop shop search 
warrants.   

• Police involvement in the Canada Day Parade was a huge success. 
• Police/Fire BBQ raised $ 1200 and involved many fire and police 

officers being dunked by the general public. 

2018 Goals  

• Municipal traffic enforcement – concentrating on distracted driving 
offences and speed infractions within the municipality. 

• Youth Involvement-reactivation of DARE program, development of 
youth strategy programs within the schools, City camps and other 
organizations and Grad safety. 

• Crime reduction (property crime) - curfew/street checks and as well street level enforcement 
when illegal drugs are involved (Possession & Trafficking).  
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Library 

The Dawson Creek Municipal Public Library has more than 19,000 registered patrons including both City 
and Rural residents. The library offers regular programs (in the library/community/schools) for babies, 
toddlers, pre-schoolers, students, adults and seniors.  Periodic programs and events are held for 
elementary school age children, teens and adults. In addition to books, our library offers reference 
books, newspapers, magazines, audio books, music, DVDs, ESL books, adult literacy and access to free 
eBooks and eMagazines.  We also provide free use of computers for internet use, Wi-Fi and invigilate 
exams. 

2017 Goals  

• To partner with other groups and organizations in 
our community to provide services and 
programming for all of our citizens.  

• Maintain or increase books in all forms in our 
collection. 

• Work with schools, pre-schools and daycares to 
provide increased access to early literacy 
opportunities in the library and in the community.  

2017 Highlights 

• The library partnered with the local literacy society and the City Community Services 
Department to initiate a Book Walk along the City’s walking path.  

• Our annual summer reading club registered 600 children in 2017.  
• We offered Babies and Books, Toddler Tales, 2 Preschool Storytime programs and an 

Afterschool Library Kidz program for eight weeks twice in 2017.  
• Library Staff was very busy invigilating exams for patrons who are enrolled in distance 

learning.  
 

2018 Goals 

• Provide more programs and events for adults. 
• Increase the library’s visibility and boost our profile in the community – including expanding 

our social media profile and partnering with more organizations in our community. 
• Improve our services to our patrons with the switch to a new operating system at the library. 

This will bring the level of services for our patrons up to industry standards.  
• Expand our interlibrary loan program by joining Interlibrary Connect, a BC-wide ILL system that 

isn’t currently available with our current operating system.  
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Permissive Tax Exemptions 

REGISTERED OWNER 
ROLL 

NUMBER 
LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION CIVIC ADDRESS 

 EXEMPT 
PROPERTY 

TAXES  

Not for profit - sport related         

Dawson Creek Athletic Association 
(Clubhouse & Golf Shop) 5598.000  

Lot 1, Plan PGP 
36955 

2105 Alaska 
Highway  $  15,715.22  

          
Dawson Creek Athletic Association 
(Golf Course) 4392.000  Lot 3, Plan 21635 2100 Hart Highway      22,323.26  
          
Dawson Creek Athletic Association 
(Golf Course) 5000.000  Lot A, Plan 26918 

2121 Alaska 
Highway      70,932.00  

          
The Corporation of the City of Dawson 
Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor Sports 
Association, track) 5320.300  Lot 14, Plan 28275 65 Collins Road          374.67  
          
The Corporation of the City of Dawson 
Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor Sports 
Association, track) 5320.400  Lot 15, Plan 28275 61 Collins Road          546.09  
          
The Corporation of the City of Dawson 
Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor Sports 
Association, track) 5320.500  Lot 16, Plan 28275 57 Collins Road       1,560.25  
          
The Corporation of the City of Dawson 
Creek (Lessee: South Peace Motor Sports 
Association, track) 5320.600  Lot 17, Plan 28275 53 Collins Road          910.49  
Total Not for profit - sport related        $112,361.97  
          
Not for profit - 
housing/seniors/hospitals/schools         
Dawson Creek Community Christian 
Education Society (Ron Pettigrew Christian 
School) 5589.000  

Lot 1 Plan 
PGP35427 1761 110 Avenue      38,769.59  

          

Dawson Creek Native Housing Society 
(Driver House) 380.010  

Lot 1 Plan 
BCP36236 10600 17 Street      18,323.66  

          
Dawson Creek Society for Community 
Living (Canalta Residence-Group home for 4 
Disabled residents) 2562.000  

Lot 18 Block 6 Plan 
7613 1908 110 Avenue       3,712.52  

          

Mountain Christian School  * 3249.000  
Lot 2 Block 3 Plan 
8308 9700 5 Street      27,409.08  
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REGISTERED OWNER 
ROLL 

NUMBER 
LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION CIVIC ADDRESS 

 EXEMPT 
PROPERTY 

TAXES  

Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation 
of Prince Rupert (vacant lot) 337.000  

Lot 4, Block 17, 
Plan 2678 912 105 Avenue       1,012.03  

          
Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation 
of Prince Rupert (vacant lot) 338.000  

Lot 5, Block 17, 
Plan 2678 916 105 Avenue       1,012.03  

          

Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation 
of Prince Rupert (vacant lot) 340.500  

Parcel A (PJ 45809), 
Block 17, Plan 2678 913 104 Avenue       1,530.44  

          
Provincial Rental Housing Corp (Dawson 
Creek Society for Community Living - Disablity 
Apartments) 235.000  

Lot 5 & 6, Block 1, 
Plan 2285 10717 13 Street      10,374.83  

          

South Peace Senior Citizen's 
Association (Recreation Hall) 4202.000  

Block C except Plan 
28034, Plan 12537 

1101 McKellar 
Avenue       5,111.87  

          

South Peace Community Resource 
Society (Group Home for 5 disabled residents) 2057.000  

Lot 6 Block 1 Plan 
7090 1020 95 Avenue       3,759.38  

          
South Peace Community Resource 
Society (Reconnect Youth  program building) 122.000  

Lot 2 Block 7 Plan 
2244 904 103 Avenue       4,653.34  

          

South Peace Community Resource 
Society  *   (Group Home for disabled adults) 757.000  

Parcel B (P7439) of 
1 Block 16 Plan 
3025 1311 106 Avenue       2,932.34  

          
Total Not for profit - 
housing/seniors/hospitals/schools        $118,601.12  
          
Not for profit - social related         
BC Grain Producers Association 4479.000  Lot 2 Plan 24732 401 114 Avenue      23,390.74  
          
South Peace Historical Society (NAR 
Park Station) 4925.010  

Lot 1, Block 15, 
Plan 26496 900 Alaska Avenue       6,305.33  

          
Dawson Creek Society for Community 
Living (Opportunity Centre-classes & social 
events) 1113.150  Lot B Plan 3990 10108 14 Street       5,667.85  
          

Dawson Creek Society for Community 
Living * (staff parking) 402.000  

Lot 5 Block 2 Plan 
2958 1416 102 Avenue       2,257.22  
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REGISTERED OWNER 
ROLL 

NUMBER 
LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION CIVIC ADDRESS 

 EXEMPT 
PROPERTY 

TAXES  

Dawson Creek Society for the 
Mentally Handicapped (office) 397.000  

Lot 4 Block 1 Plan 
2958 1334 102 Avenue       6,369.82  

          

Nawican Friendship Centre 395.000  

Lot 2, Block 1, Plan 
2958 Except Plan 
6941  1320 102 Avenue       3,497.22  

Peace Region Internet Society 4210.000  Lot A Plan 12748 929 106 Avenue      14,426.36  
          
South Peace Child Development 
Society 4860.050  Lot 2, Plan 25965 9001 10 Street      10,336.08  
          
South Peace Community Resources 
Society (office) 3523.012  

Lot 1, Plan 
EPP12710 10110 13 Street       9,688.68  

          

The British Columbia Society for the 
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 2330.000  

Lot 10, Block 2, 
Plan 7219 637 114 Avenue       2,321.71  

          

The Governing Council of the Salvation 
Army in Canada 209.000  

Lot 17, Block 11, 
Plan 2244 1019 103 Avenue       6,049.84  

          

The Salvation Army BC North & Yukon 
Territory Division 210.000  

Lot 18, Block 11, 
Plan 2244 1021 103 Avenue       6,243.32  

          

The British Columbia Society for the 
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 4835.000  

Lot A, Plan 
PGP25707 11418 3 St      10,194.69  

          

Dawson Creek Youth Centre Society 
(o/a The Ark) 3782.500  

Lot 1, Plan 
PGP12205 8800 17 St       6,009.87  

          
Total Not for profit - social related        $112,758.71  
          
Total tax exemption from the above 
properties        $343,721.80  
 

*= New applications for permissive tax exemption received in 2017 
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Permissive Tax Exemptions – Public Worship 

REGISTERED OWNER 
ROLL 

NUMBER 
LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION CIVIC ADDRESS 

EXEMPT  
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
          

Anglican Synod Diocese of Caledonia 212.000  
Lots 20 & 21, Block 
11, Plan 2244 1029 103 Avenue  $     740.09  

          

B.C. Conference of the Mennonite 
Bretheran Churches 2542.000  

Parcel A (E013110) 
of Lot 17 and 
Amended Lot 18 
(87041M), Block 3, 
Plan 7613 

1800 109 Avenue 
        202.22  

          

Baptist Union of Western Canada 4020.000  
Parcel Z, Block 2, 
Plan 10954 1400 113 Avenue        254.57  

          
Christian & Missionary Alliance 
Canadian Pacific District 4860.000  Lot 1, Plan 25965 9009 10 Street    11,411.66  
          

Church of the Nazarene 3172.000  Parcel A, Plan 8288 
429 & 433 95 
Avenue      1,088.07  

          
Dawson Creek Community Church and 
Missionary Society 282.000  Lot 1, Plan 2641 1224 103 Avenue        949.49  
          
General Church of the New Jerusalem 
in Dawson Creek, British Columbia 3110.000  

Parcel A (P2223) 
Block 7, Plan 7887 9013 8 Street      1,098.33  

          
Governing Council of Salvation Army 
Canada West 265.000  

Lot 8, Block 5, Plan 
2490 1436 104 Avenue        239.17  

          
Grace Lutheran Church of Dawson 
Church 4465.100  

Lot 1, Plan 
BCP30054 11101 17 Street        539.93  

          

Grandview Chapel 2082.000  
Lot 1, Block 3, Plan 
7090 900 94 Avenue        692.87  

  (vacant lot) 2083.000  
Lot 2, Block 3, Plan 
7090 904 94 Avenue        611.10  

          

Pentecostal Assemblies of Canada 4497.500  
Lot 1, Plan 25167 
Except Plan 27495 11501 17 Street    10,909.74  

          
Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day 
Saints 5607.000  

Lot 1, Plan PGP 
45251 10901 13 Street      4,565.60  
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REGISTERED OWNER 
ROLL 

NUMBER 
LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION CIVIC ADDRESS 

EXEMPT  
PROPERTY 

TAXES 
Roman Catholic Episcopal Corporation 
of Prince Rupert 5598.400  

Lot A, Plan 
PGP37015 925 104 Avenue      8,284.74  

          
St. James Presbyterian  4367.000  Lot 2, Plan 20730 1501 108 Avenue        382.88  
          
St. Paul's Evangelical Lutheran Cong. 
Holding Society 2917.000  

Parcel A, Block 4, 
Plan 7752 

905 Cornwall 
Crescent        960.79  

          
The BC Corporation of the Seventh 
Day Adventist Church 5550.000  Lot 1, Plan 30815 9201 14 Street        488.60  
          
New Beginnings Baptist Church of 
Dawson Creek 1286.000  Lot 6, Plan 4850 10221 18 Street        714.43  
          
Trustees of the Congregation of the 
South Peace United Church.  Executor, 
Trustee or Administrator 251.000  

Lot 6, Block 4, Plan 
2285 1300 104 Avenue      1,947.23  

          

Trustees of the Willowbrook 
Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses 1431.000  

Lots 4-7, Block 4, 
Plan 5526 640 105A Avenue        281.26  

          

United Pentecostal Church 828.000  
Lot 6, Block 1, Plan 
3114 701 96A Avenue        483.47  

          

Roman Catholic Episcopal Corp 181.000  
Lots 3-6, Block 10, 
Plan 2244 908 104 Avenue      1,412.44  

Total Exempt Property Tax        $48,258.66  
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Annual Development Cost Charges Report  

For the year ending December 31, 2017 

 Opening Balance  Development Cost 
Charges Received  

Expenditures  Interest Earned  Closing Balance  

Water  $710,668.08 $437,516.31 $700,000 $12,650.43 $460,834.82 

Sewer  $63,350.84 $197,952.51 0 $2,049.05 $263,352.40 
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Assets 

 

Note: Net book value indicates the value of asset after deducting the accumulated depreciation from 
the original cost. 

Approximately 45 % of the City’s 2016 asset base is related to buildings and improvements. As can be 
seen from the pie charts above $ spent correlate closely to the base except in the utility infrastructure 
category  

2017 Baseline Comparison Summary 

In summary: 

• The City owns $224M in tangible capital assets at December 31, 2017. 

• Buildings, roads and utility infrastructure make up 81% of the total. 

• The largest asset investment by service area over the past two year is in Transportation 
(19.32%), followed by utility infrastructure (38.99%) and Recreation (36.14%). 

• The asset base as a whole is approximately 53% through its useful service life. 

• A minimum of $8.1M (2017 Annual Depreciation) should be reinvested annually or set aside in 
reserves to maintain the asset base at its current level (to offset the depreciation effect). 

• Greater investment is needed for equipment (34% remaining life), land improvement (44%) and 
road infrastructure replacement (46%) in the short term to maintain current service levels.  

45% 

4% 5% 

17% 

19% 

10% 

Asset Base - 2017 
Net book Value $ 224M 

Building and
Improvements

Equipment

Land and
Improvements

Streets, Roads &
Sidewalks

Utility Infrastructure
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Linear Assets 

ASSETS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Sidewalks 48 km 49.9 km 50.6 km 51.3 km 51.3 km 

Paved Streets (City Owned) 103 km 107 km 107.3 km 107.3 km 107.3 km 

Paved Lanes 2 km 2 km 2 km 2 km 2 km 

Gravelled Streets (City Owned) 16 km 16 km 16 km 16.5 km 16.5 km 

Sanitary Sewer Mains 107 km 110 km 110 km 111.6 km 111.6 km 

Water Mains (Domestic/Raw) 138 km/19 
km 

140 km/19 
km 

143 km/19 
km 

143 km/19 
km 143 km/19 km 

Storm Sewer Main 65 km 65 km 65.2 km 65.8 km 65.8 km 

Service Connections to property Approx. 
5000+ 

Approx. 
5000+ 5197 5218 5224 

City Street Lights 508 508 571 585 585 

Sanitary Manholes 1119 1133 1136 1152 1152 

Signs 2022 2015 2250 2261 2261 

Storm Manholes 574 574 609 628 628 

Catch Basins 1047 1047 1076 1121 1121 

Fire Hydrants (City Owned) 468 471 485 484 484 

Water - Total Fixtures 1070 1093 1231 1230 1230 

Main Valves 959 970 1007 1006 1006 

Traffic Lights 2 2 2 2 2 

Solar Crossing Lights 2 4 7 8 8 

Solar Caution Lights (Warning) 1 1 2 2 2 

Solar Walking Path Lights 2 2 2 2 2 
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ASSETS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Solar Stoplights 2 2 2 2 2 

Solar Street Lights 0 0 Removed Removed Removed 

Solar Speed Signs 3 4 4 5 + 1 portable 5 + 1 portable 

*Note:  these numbers are reflective of all City Owned assets. 
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management's responsibility. Management is
also responsible for all the of the notes to the consolidated financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring that this
information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the consolidated financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide reasonable
assurance that reliable financial information is produced.

The Mayor and Council are responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and
internal control and exercises theses responsibilities through regular council meetings. The Mayor and Council review
internal consolidated financial statements on quarterly basis and external audited consolidated financial's statements yearly.

The external auditors, Sander Rose Bone Grindle LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian
auditing standards, and express their opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The external auditors have full and
free access to financial management of the Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek and meet when required.

On behalf of the Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek

Adam Langenmaier Dale Bumstead
Chief Financial Officer Mayor

1



2.
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Mayor and Council of the Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Dawson
Creek, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and
the consolidated statements of operations and changes in surplus, changes in net debt and cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian auditing standards.  Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek as at December 31, 2017 and its results of
operations and cash flows and changes in net debt for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Dawson Creek, BC
May 4, 2018 Chartered Professional Accountants



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2017

2017 2016

Financial Assets
Cash (Note 2) $ 19,056,389 $ 28,895,732
Receivables (Note 3) 8,554,477 5,559,117
Inventory of property held for resale (Note 4) - -
Municipal finance authority deposits and demand notes (Note 5) 2,331,311 2,476,124

29,942,177 36,930,973
Liabilities

Temporary Borrowing (Note 6) 34,227 173,226
Payables (Note 7) 8,844,544 8,899,277
Accrued interest on long term debt 285,867 285,867
Deferred Revenue 1,878,479 1,778,284
Municipal Finance Authority Debt Reserve (Note 5) 2,331,311 2,476,124
Debenture Debt (Note 8) 30,494,494 33,613,378
Deferred Capital Contribution (Note 10) 7,322,293 8,981,285

51,191,215 56,207,441

Net Debt (21,249,038) (19,276,468)
Non Financial Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 613,144 209,469
Inventory of supplies held for consumption 394,897 351,397
Tangible Capital Asset (Note 11) 223,594,286 207,804,725

224,602,327 208,365,591

Accumulated Surplus(Note 12) 203,353,289 189,089,123

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Approved by:

Adam Langenmaier, BBA,CPA, CA, Chief Financial Officer
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGE IN SURPLUS

December 31, 2017

2017 2017 2016

Actual Budget
(unaudited)

Actual

Revenue
Net Municipal Property Tax (Note 13) $ 16,232,098 $ 16,328,894 $ 16,434,556
Grant in Lieu 813,076 746,078 709,594
Sale of Service 3,221,435 3,306,490 3,180,750
Other Revenue 3,206,763 1,756,964 3,764,589
Government Transfer (Note 14) 20,550,661 23,426,620 18,545,865
Return on Investments 479,943 348,251 394,735
Amortization of Deferred Capital Contribution 1,658,992 - 1,658,992
Utility fees 11,441,904 10,195,596 9,012,198
Actuarial Adjustment 750,855 - 646,392
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets (311,499) - (495,559)

 58,044,228 56,108,893 53,852,112
Expenses 

General government services 3,973,659 4,368,059 3,930,057
Protective Services 8,557,750 8,859,965 8,023,804
Transportation services 7,617,319 7,507,773 7,902,618
Air transport 1,420,733 1,211,823 1,339,818
Environmental waste services 763,224 793,705 818,537
Public health and welfare 92,751 119,122 114,653
Environmental development services 1,191,163 1,229,571 1,373,364
Recreational and cultural services 13,524,616 11,787,912 12,249,746
Water and sewer utility services 6,638,847 7,247,279 5,958,185

 43,780,062 43,125,209 41,710,782

Annual Surplus 14,264,166 12,983,684 12,141,331

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 189,089,123 189,089,123 176,947,793

Accumulated surplus, end of year 203,353,289 202,072,807 189,089,123

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

December 31, 2017

2017

Actual

2017

Budget
(unaudited)

2016

Actual

Annual Surplus $ 14,264,166 $ 12,983,684 $ 12,141,331
Amortization of tangible capital assets 8,088,965 7,949,958 7,949,957
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (24,370,607) (13,367,839) (13,367,839)
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets 311,499 495,559 495,559
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 180,580 - 11,745
Acquisitions of prepaid expenses (751,213) - (377,967)
Use of prepaid expenses 347,538 - 533,993
Acquisition of supplies inventory (565,336) - (458,645)
Consumption of supplies inventory 521,838 - 453,706

Decrease (increase) in net debt (1,972,570) 8,061,362 7,381,840

Net Debt, beginning of year (19,276,468) (19,276,468) (26,658,308)

Net Debt, end of year (21,249,038) (11,214,836) (19,276,468)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

December 31, 2017

2017 2016

Operating Activities
Annual Surplus $ 14,264,166 $ 12,141,331

Add (deduct) non-cash items:
Actuarial adjustment (750,855) (646,392)
Loss on sale of tangible capital asset 311,499 495,559
Amortization of tangible capital assets 8,088,965 7,949,957
Amortization of deferred capital contribution (1,658,992) (1,658,992)

20,254,783 18,281,463
(Increase) in receivables (2,995,360) (244,671)
Decrease ( Increase) in prepaid expenses (403,676) 156,025
(Increase) in inventory  of supplies held for consumption (43,500) (4,938)
(Decrease) in payables (54,733) (401,884)
(Decrease) in accrued interest on long term debt - (4,310)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 100,195 (572,946)

16,857,709 17,208,739
Capital Activities

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (24,370,607) (13,367,839)
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 180,580 11,745

(24,190,027) (13,356,094)
Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowing 63,122 -
Proceeds from (repayments of) restricted cash, financing activities (28,895) (87,110)
Debenture debt principal repayment (2,541,252) (2,573,050)

(2,507,025) (2,660,160)

Change in Cash and Investments (9,839,343) 1,192,485

Cash and Investments, beginning of year 28,895,732 27,703,246

Cash and Investments, end of year $ 19,056,389 $ 28,895,732

Cash and Investments consist of the following:
Petty Cash - trade $ 94,870 $ 78,835
Bank 4,794,887 6,857,627
Internally Restricted Cash 14,166,632 21,959,270

19,056,389 28,895,732

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

6



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

  General 

The City of Dawson Creek is incorporated under the provisions of the British Columbia Local Government Act.  Its principle
activities include the provision of local government services to the residents of the incorporated area.

1 Significant Accounting Policies 

The consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek are the representations of
management and conform to Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to British Columbia
municipalities.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with local government accounting standards
established by the Public Sector Accounting and Auditing Standards Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants.  The significant accounting policies are as follows:

a) Basis of Presentation 

The City follows the fund basis of accounting.  Funds are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or
attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.  Currently in use are:

1) General Revenue Funds - to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.  The General Revenue Fund is the corporation's operating fund including collection of taxation, administering
operations related to general government, protective, transportation, waste, development and recreational services.
These funds include the General Operating, Water Operating and Sewer Operating Funds.

2) Capital Funds - to account for all capital assets of the corporation and offset by long term debt and investment in
capital assets. These funds include the General Capital, Water Capital and Sewer Capital Funds.

3) Reserve Funds - to account for the activities in reserves established for specific purposes by bylaw or the Local
Government Act.  The use of each reserve is governed by it's own bylaw or the Local Government Act. These funds
include the Equipment Pool, Tax Sale, Land Sale and Off Street Parking Funds.

b) Basis of Accounting 

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are recognized in the period in
which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred or transfers are due.

c) Financial Instruments 

The City's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables, Municipal Finance Authority reserve deposits, temporary
borrowing, payables, accrued interest on long term debt, Municipal Finance Authority demand notes, and long-term
debt.  Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the City is not exposed to significant interest, currency or
credit risks arising from these financial instruments.  The fair value of these financial instruments approximate their
carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

d) Use of Estimates 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting practices generally accepted in Canada.  In
preparing these financial statements management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include assumptions used in estimating
useful lives of tangible capital assets and related amortization, contributed tangible capital assets, developer
contributions, inventory of property held for resale and provisions for accrued liabilities.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e) Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures, changes in fund balances
and changes in financial position of the reporting entity, being The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek.  Financial
transactions of the Encana Events Centre are managed by a related party, Global Spectrum Facility Management, LP and
are consolidated into the City's financial statements as a governmental unit (refer to Note 16, Related Party
Transactions.)

f) Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues. All
revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of
certainty or when their estimation is impractical.

(i) Government Transfers
Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period the
transfers are authorized and any eligibility criteria have been met, except when and to the extent
that the transfer gives rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability for the recipient
government. Transfers received which meet the definition of a liability are included in deferred
revenue.

(ii) Taxation Revenue
Annual levies for non-optional municipal services and general administrative services are recorded
as taxes for municipal purposes. Levies imposed by other taxing authorities are not included as
taxes for municipal purposes. Taxes are recognized as revenue in the year they are levied.

g) Deferred Revenue

Certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be performed. Revenue is
recognized in the period when the related expenses are incurred or the services are performed.

h) Reserves for Future Expenditures

Reserves for future expenditures are non-statutory reserves which represent an appropriation of surplus for specific
purposes. Transfers to reserves for future expenditures include funds to finance incomplete projects and accumulations
for specific purposes.

i) Non Financial Assets

Non financial assets include tangible capital assets that have an economic life extending beyond the accounting period.
They are available for use, require operating and maintenance expenditures, and may need to be replaced in the future.
They include assets on hand and available for use by government in the near future, such as equipment, and assets for
use over a longer period, such as buildings and land.  Governments also acquire and make available to the public
tangible capital assets that are complex network systems such as water and sewer utility systems.

Also included in non financial assets are prepaid expenses which represent payments made in the current accounting
period for expenditures to be made in the provision of services in future years, and inventory of supplies held for
consumption which will be consumed in the provision of services in future years.

8



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

i) Non Financial Assets (Continued) 

Tangible capital assets and other non financial assets are accounted for as assets by the government because they can be
used to provide government services in future periods.  These assets do not normally provide resources to discharge the
liabilities of the government unless they are sold.

(i) Prepaid Expenses  
Prepaid expenses consist of amounts paid in the current year for supplies and/or services used in
the following year.

(ii) Inventory of Supplies Held for Consumption  
Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

(iii) Tangible Capital Assets  
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  Interest on funding related to a
capital project is not capitalized as a part of the asset cost.  The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Asset Useful life-years

Land Not amortized
Land improvements 20
Building base structures 50
Building improvements 20
Machinery and equipment 7 - 30
Transportation infrastructure 25 - 75
Water and sewer utility infrastructure 50 -75

Annual amortization is not charged in the year of acquisition or disposition.  Assets under
construction (Work in Progress) are not amortized until the year following the year the asset is
available for use.
The City does not own any works of art and/or historical treasures.

j) Budget Presentation 

The budget approved in May 2017 is presented in the financial statements, any subsequent amendments have not been
included.

k) Liabilities for contaminated sites 

The City recognizes a liability for remediation of a contaminated site when the site is no longer in productive use or an
unexpected event resulting in contamination has occurred and the following criteria are satisfied: contamination exceeds
and environmental standard, the City is either directly responsible or has accepted responsibility for remediation, it is

9



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

k) Liabilities for contaminated sites (Continued)
expected future economic benefits will be given up and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The City adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard 3260 - Liability for Contaminated Sites for the year ended December
31, 2015. The City has performed a review of it's properties. No determinable liability was identified from this review.

2 Cash 

2017 2016

Unrestricited Cash
Bank $ 4,794,887 $ 6,857,627
Petty Cash - trade 94,870 78,835

Internally Restricted Cash
Bank 14,166,632 21,959,270

19,056,389 28,895,732

3 Receivables 

2017 2016

Trade and Other receivables
Federal Government $ 791,539 $ 537,881
Provincial and Local Government 835,490 485,248
General 3,310,548 898,986

Property Tax 2,376,316 2,335,393
Utilities 1,240,584 1,301,609

8,554,477 5,559,117

4 Inventory of property held for resale 

Opening 
Balance

Additions Disposals
at cost

Balance
2017

Balance
2016

Property acquired for taxes
subject to redemption $ 69,388 $ 23,044 $ (83,508)$ 8,924 $ 69,388

Tax Property not subject
to redemption 1,009,092 - - 1,009,092 1,009,092

Unsold Land 15,800 - - 15,800 15,800
Allowance for Loss (1,094,280) (23,044) 83,508 (1,033,816) (1,094,280)

- - - - -
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

5 Municipal Finance Authority Reserve Deposits and Demand Notes 

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority.  As a condition of these borrowings, a portion
of the debenture proceeds are withheld by the Municipal Finance Authority as a debt reserve fund.  The City also executes
demand notes in conjunction with each debenture whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the
Municipal Finance Authority.

The details of the cash deposits and demand notes are as follows:

Cash
Deposits

Demand
Notes

Total
2017

Total
2016

General Fund Operations $ 306,409 $ 916,874 $ 1,223,283 $ 1,355,334
Water Fund Operations 254,015 558,663 812,678 826,614
Sewer Fund Operations 93,869 201,482 295,351 294,176

654,293 1,677,019 2,331,312 2,476,124

6 Temporary Borrowing 

2017 2016

Temporary borrowing $ 34,227 $ 173,226

7 Payables 

2017 2016

Trade and Other Payables
Federal Government $ 863,733 $ 889,980
Provincial Government 502,083 563,934
General 6,133,634 6,635,905

Capital Payables 1,345,094 809,459

8,844,544 8,899,278

8 Debenture Debt 

City
Bylaw #

Purpose Interest
Rate

Issued Redeemed Outstanding
2017

Outstanding
2016

3852 Local area service %4.52 $ 82,915 $ 82,915 $ - $ 9,829
3854 Local area service %4.52 57,843 57,843 - 6,857
3855 Local area service %4.52 50,051 50,051 - 5,934
3856 Local area service %4.52 110,442 110,442 - 13,093
3857 Local area service %4.52 3,120 3,120 - 370
3858 Local area service %4.52 4,550 4,550 - 539

11



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

8 Debenture Debt (Continued)

City
Bylaw #

Purpose Interest
Rate

Issued Redeemed Outstanding
2017

Outstanding
2016

3859 Local area service %4.52 30,028 30,028 - 3,560
3860 Local area service %4.52 66,666 66,666 - 7,903
3861 Local area service %4.52 61,940 61,940 - 7,343
3862 Local area service %4.52 63,606 63,606 - 7,541
3863 Capital works %4.52 26,251 26,251 - 3,112
3864 Ball diamond relocation %4.52 622,594 622,594 - 73,808
3685 Local area service %4.82 16,500 16,500 - 1,956
3714 Local area service %4.82 33,500 33,500 - 3,971
3715 Local area service %4.82 14,585 14,585 - 1,729
3716 Local area service %4.82 17,350 17,350 - 2,057
3717 Local area service %4.82 50,000 50,000 - 5,928
3718 Local area service %4.82 17,675 17,675 - 2,095
3719 Local area service %4.82 53,800 53,800 - 6,378
3720 Local area service %4.82 43,020 43,020 - 5,100
3721 Local area service %4.82 22,625 22,625 - 2,682
3722 Capital works %4.82 49,500 49,500 - 5,868
3723 Local area service %4.82 45,550 45,550 - 5,400
3807 Local area service %4.82 144,395 144,395 - 17,118
3879 South Peace Multiplex %2.25 9,850,000 3,971,383 5,878,617 6,349,420
3889 Local area service %4.82 250,000 250,000 - 29,637
3916 Capital works %4.65 731,800 645,046 86,754 170,172
3917 Capital works %4.65 71,500 63,024 8,476 16,627
4080 Calvin Kruk Arts Center %2.90 4,000,000 727,558 3,272,442 3,429,585
4107 Capital works %2.90 81,007 36,545 44,462 52,356
4108 Capital works %2.90 804,005 362,711 441,294 519,635
4109 Capital works %2.90 1,505,256 679,067 826,189 972,859
4140 Capital works %3.15 2,700,000 954,968 1,745,032 1,997,997
4166 Local area service - 2013 %3.00 2,790,000 725,403 2,064,597 2,315,941
4211 Local area service - 2014 %2.75 20,997 3,642 17,355 19,207
4212 Local service - 2014 %2.75 49,433 8,575 40,858 45,129
4213 Local service area - 2014 %2.75 174,365 30,246 144,119 159,502
4215 Capital works %2.20 1,382,000 239,730 1,142,270 1,264,197
4216 Capital works %2.20 450,000 78,060 371,940 411,731
4264 Local area service - 2015 %2.80 176,043 - 176,043 -

Total General 26,724,912 10,464,464 16,260,448 17,954,166
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF DAWSON CREEK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2017

8 Debenture Debt (Continued)

City
Bylaw #

Purpose Interest
Rate

Issued Redeemed Outstanding
2017

Outstanding
2016

3211 Water improvements %4.82 328,000 328,000 - 25,066
3255 Water improvements %4.65 375,000 346,342 28,658 55,951
3290 Water improvements %4.65 550,000 507,968 42,032 82,062
3324 Water improvements %2.10 620,000 529,002 90,998 133,564
3339 Water improvements %2.10 2,250,000 1,919,765 330,235 484,709
3405 Water improvements %2.10 500,000 426,614 73,386 107,713
3469 Water improvements %2.10 195,000 153,108 41,892 54,671
3527 Water improvements %1.75 750,000 489,444 260,556 305,465
3527 Water improvements %2.40 175,334 103,923 71,411 81,410
3572 Water improvements %2.40 200,000 118,543 81,457 92,863
3619 Water improvements %2.40 1,200,000 642,824 557,176 622,350
3527 Water improvements %2.00 700,000 374,980 325,020 363,037
3619 Water improvements %2.00 1,971,000 1,055,838 915,162 1,022,210
3527 Water improvements %2.25 556,666 224,440 332,226 358,833
3824 Water improvements %2.25 555,000 223,768 331,232 357,759
3888 Water improvements %2.25 1,844,900 743,838 1,101,062 1,189,243
4168 Loran Reservior %3.00 3,500,000 910,004 2,589,996 2,905,303

Total Water 16,270,900 9,098,401 7,172,499 8,242,209
3315 Sewer improvements %2.10 485,000 413,816 71,184 104,482
3759 Sewer improvements %1.80 300,000 152,014 147,986 163,782
4121 Sewer improvements %3.85 535,496 189,401 346,095 396,267
4199 Sewer improvements %2.75 7,000,000 503,719 6,496,281 6,752,472

Total Sewer 8,320,496 1,258,950 7,061,546 7,417,003

51,316,308 20,821,815 30,494,493 33,613,378
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December 31, 2017

8 Debenture Debt (Continued)

Future debt principle reductions
on existing debt:

General Water Sewer Total

2018 $ 1,380,755 $ 688,058 $ 319,235 $ 2,388,048
2019 1,313,847 660,084 319,235 2,293,166
2020 1,313,847 548,371 303,158 2,165,376
2021 1,313,847 541,907 303,158 2,158,912
2022 1,313,847 541,907 303,158 2,158,912

6,636,143 2,980,327 1,547,944 11,164,414

9 Interest on Long Term Debt

2017 2016

Interest on General Service $ 57,219 $ 48,866
Interest on Recreation Service 585,515 647,476
Interest on Water Service 487,562 500,649
Interest on Sewer Service 228,702 228,831
Interest on Transportation Service 423,411 395,903

1,782,408 1,821,725

10 Deferred Capital Contribution

In agreement in 2010, the City partnered with Shell Canada to build a water reclamation plant. The project was completed
in 2012. Th total project cost was $18.3 million. Shell Canada funded $16.6 million of the total project cost in exchange for
3,400cu/m of reclaimed water a day for a period of 10 years. Future amortization reductions are as follows:

Opening
Balance

Annual
Amount

Closing
Balance

2017 $ 8,981,285 $ 1,658,992 $ 7,322,293

2018 7,322,293 1,658,992 5,663,301

2019 5,663,301 1,658,992 4,004,309

2020 4,004,309 1,658,992 2,345,317

2021 2,345,317 1,658,992 686,325
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11 Tangible Capital Assets 
Net Book

Value
Continuity
Schedule

Opening
Balance

2017
WIP

Reallocation
Additions Net
of Disposals

Annual
Amortization

Net of
Disposals

Ending
Balance

2017

Ending
Balance

2016

Land $ 11,302,023 $ 106,731 $ 19,200 $ (283,129)$ 11,144,825 $ 11,302,021
Buildings 100,665,997 368,799 2,412,753 (3,871,410) 99,576,139 100,665,999
Equipment 7,142,607 - 1,506,405 (347,268) 8,301,744 7,142,607
Road 38,654,386 - 882,881 (1,897,222) 37,640,045 38,654,384
Utility Infrastructure 42,679,135 1,434,367 282,454 (894,260) 43,501,696 42,679,136
Work In Progress 7,360,577 (1,909,897) 17,979,157 - 23,429,837 7,360,577

207,804,725 - 23,082,850 (7,293,289) 223,594,286 207,804,724

Cost
Continuity
Schedule

Opening
Balance

2017
WIP

Reallocation Additions Disposals

Ending
Balance

2017

Ending
Balance

2016

Land - Cost $ 14,865,828 $ 106,731 $ 19,200 $ - $ 14,991,759 $ 14,865,828
Building Cost 134,463,029 368,799 2,828,423 (415,670) 137,244,581 134,463,031
Equipment - Cost 18,190,143 - 2,317,259 (810,854) 19,696,548 18,190,143
Road - Cost 75,365,774 - 882,881 - 76,248,655 75,365,774
Utility Infrastructure - Cost 59,358,102 1,434,367 282,454 - 61,074,923 59,358,102
Work In Progress 7,360,577 (1,909,897) 18,040,390 (61,233) 23,429,837 7,360,577

309,603,453 - 24,370,607 (1,287,757) 332,686,303 309,603,455

Amortization
Continuity
Schedule

Opening
Balance

2017 Adjustment
Annual

Amortization Disposals

Ending
Balance

2017

Ending
Balance

2016

land - Accumulated Amortization $ 3,563,807 $ - $ 283,129 $ - $ 3,846,936 $ (3,563,807)
Building - Accumulated Amortization 33,797,031 - 4,001,712 (130,302) 37,668,441 33,797,031
Equipment - Accumulated Amortization 11,047,536 - 1,012,643 (665,375) 11,394,804 (11,047,536)
Road - Accumulated Amortization 36,711,389 - 1,897,222 - 38,608,611 36,711,389
Utility Infrastructure - Accumulated Amortization 16,678,965 - 894,260 - 17,573,225 16,678,965

101,798,728 - 8,088,966 (795,677) 109,092,017 72,576,042

Contributed Tangible Capital Assets
Additions

2017
Additions

2016

Land $ - $ 330,000
Equipment 42,000 25,452

42,000 355,452
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11 Tangible Capital Assets (Continued)

a) Work in Progress
Work in Progress are costs related to projects currently under planning, development or construction,
that will result in a finished asset at a future date. Costs related to planning, development or construction
are capitalized until such time as the property is ready for use. Work in Progress assets are not amortized
until the year after the asset is put into service.

b) Contributed Tangible Capital Assets
Contributed capital assets have been recongized at fair market value at the date of contribution.

c) Write-down of Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the
City's ability to provide goods and services. Any impairment is accounted for as an expense in the
consolidated statement of operations. No impairments were identified or recorded during the year
ended December 31, 2017.

12 Accumulated Surplus

Operating
Fund

Surplus

Capital
Fund

Surplus

Invested in
Tangible

Capital Assets 2017 2016

General Fund $ 3,334,740 $ 6,570,462 $ 117,846,298 $ 127,751,500 $ 123,362,392
Water Fund 1,080,239 3,207,220 38,185,254 42,472,713 37,260,997
Sewer Fund 1,692,302 3,231,204 27,460,533 32,384,039 27,610,995
Statutory Reserves - - - 745,037 854,739

6,107,281 13,008,886 183,492,085 203,353,289 189,089,123

13 Net Municipal Property Taxes

2017 2016

Municipal Property Tax $ 16,245,102 $ 16,441,171
Add: Requisitions collected on behalf of other taxing authorities

Ministry of finance(school taxes) 5,994,973 6,420,201
Peace river regional district 1,682,036 1,798,744
Peace river regional hospital district 1,509,743 1,486,445
British Columbia Assessment Authority 134,265 156,236
Municipal Finance Authority 507 509

Total property taxes collected 25,566,626 26,303,306
Less: Requisitions paid out to other taxing authorities (9,334,529) (9,868,749)

Net Municipal Property Taxes 16,232,097 16,434,557
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14 Government Transfers

2017 2016

Unconditional
Small Communities $ 341,550 $ 338,097
Carbon Tax Rebate 62,705 75,001
Peace River Agreement 13,896,555 14,972,804

14,300,810 15,385,902
Conditional

Regional
Economic Development - Grant Writing Support Program 8,000 8,000
Northern Dvelopment Initiative Trust 87,503 81,100
Regional 911 Service 250,531 232,871
Rural Fire Protection 237,577 202,856
South Peace Economic Development 12,000 20,500
Sub Regional Recreation 419,040 420,390
Watershed Steward Cost Sharing 40,000 40,000

Total - Regional 1,054,651 1,005,717
Provincial

Arterial Lighting - Ministry of Transportation 915 915
BC Air Access Program 120,623 36,977
Bike BC - 48,305
Community Works Fund Agreeement - Gas Tax 547,915 541,125
Education grants - City Kids Daycare 8,234 17,621
Emergency Management BC - 2016 Flood Response 218,595 194,420
Miscellaneous 1,000 25,440
New Build Canada Fund - Small Communities Fund 1,487,115 549,720
Traffic fine revenue sharing 170,162 190,001

Total- Provincial 2,554,559 1,604,524
Federal

Airport Capital Assistance Program 653,536 -
Canada 150 DC Curling Rink Upgrade 499,989 -
New Build Canada Fund - Small Communities Fund 1,487,115 549,721

Total - Federal 2,640,640 549,721

Total - Conditional 20,550,660 18,545,864

15 Pension Liability

The employer and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (Plan), a jointly-trusted pension plan.  The Board
of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan,
including investment of the assets and administration of the benefits.  The Plan is a multi-employer contributory pension
plan.  Basic pension benefits provided are based on a formula.  As at December 31, 2016 the Plan has about 193,000 active
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15 Pension Liability (Continued)
members and approximately 90,000 retired members.  Active members include approximately 38,000 contributors from
local governments.

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to asses the financial position of the plan and adequacy of plan
funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan. The
actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces long-term rate of
member and employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate is then
adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any fund deficit.

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as of December 31, 2015, indicated a 2.22 billion funding surplus
for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2015 basic account actuarial valuation surplus and
pursuant to the joint trustee agreement, $1.93 billion was transfered to the rate stabilization account and $297 million of
the surplus ensured the required contribution rates remained unchanged.

The Corporation of the City of Dawson Creek paid $975,568 (2016 - $958,344) for employer contributions to the plan in
fiscal 2017, while employees contributed $826,026 (2016 - $818,824) to the plan in fiscal 2017.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2018, with the results in 2019.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made during the
fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued
assets for the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
the individual employers participating in the plan.

16 Related Party Transactions

The Relationship

The City of Dawson Creek has related party transactions through a management agreement with Global Spectrum Facility
Management, LP (Global Spectrum).

In 2016 The City of Dawson Creek renewed the management agreement with Global Spectrum to manage and operate the
Encana Event Centre and common areas housed in the South Peace Community Multiplex located at #1 300 Highway 2 in
Dawson Creek.  Global Spectrum acts on behalf of and as an agent for the City.

The management services covered under this agreement include the following:

a) Management and operational services related to events
b) Responsibility for maintenance and operation of all HVAC, electrical and mechanical systems
c) Sale of commercial rights of the Complex
d) Ticketing system for the Complex
e) Food system services for the Complex
f) Exterior security services for the Complex

Management services not covered under this agreement (excluded services) are as follows:

a) Aquatic Centre operations
b) Agriplex Centre operations
c) Maintenance of parking lots and surrounding grounds
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16 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Term

The term of the agreement begins January 1, 2017 and ends December 31, 2027.

Compensation

In exchange for the management services provided by Global Spectrum, the City will pay a fixed management fee as
follows:

2018 2017
$ 188,700 $ 185,000

Beginning with the second operating year, the fixed management fee shall be increased over the fixed management fee
from the previous operating year in accordance with the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index.

In addition, a qualitative management fee of up to 25% of the fixed management fee is payable each year based on meeting
certain qualitative factors. For 2017, this fee totalled $41,625.

In addition, an incentive fee equal to 20% on an improvement in a benchmark amount is payable to Global Spectrum
beginning in the 2018 budget year.  The benchmark amount shall be equal to a mutually agreed net bottom line number in
the 2017 operating budget.  For 2017, the benchmark was adjusted to $1,550,000 (2016 - $1,550,000) and the resulting
incentive fee amount is $16,481 (2016 - $33,657).

The City of Dawson Creek as the owner of the facility is required to provide funding to the Global Spectrum through an
annual budget allocation.  All revenues and expenditures, profits and losses are the City's responsibility.  Budget allocations
for the Event Centre in 2017 and the next five years are as follows:
2018 $ 1,550,000
2019 1,550,000
2020 1,550,000
2021 1,550,000
2022 1,550,000

Transactions

The assets and liabilities have been consolidated on a line by line basis in the statement of financial position and the
revenues and expenditures have been netted in the statement of financial activities.  These transactions were in the normal
course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and
agreed to by the related parties.

At the end of the year, the amounts due to (from) Global Spectrum are as follows:

2017 2016

Opening Balance, due (from) to $ (123,126) $ (115,150)
Payments made 123,126 115,150
(Income) loss due (to) from the City of Dawson Creek (65,925) (134,626)
Expenses paid on behalf of the City of Dawson Creek 3,840 11,500
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16 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

Transactions (Continued)  
2017 2016

Closing balance due from GS (62,085) (123,126)

These amounts are non-interest bearing and have no set terms of repayment.

2017 2016

Assets
Cash $ 1,028,323 $ 1,263,157
Receivables - trade 499,114 78,736
Prepaid expenses and deposits 39,873 21,402

1,567,310 1,363,295
Liabilities

Payables 813,906 488,605
Deposits 65,000 67,000
Deferred revenue 626,319 684,564

1,505,225 1,240,169

Due (from) to Global Spectrum (62,085) (123,126)

2017 2016

Revenue
Sales $ 4,783,561 $ 4,619,065
Cost of Sales (3,605,439) (3,550,676)

Gross profit 1,178,122 1,068,389
Interest 12,864 9,727

1,190,986 1,078,116
Expenses 2,675,061 2,493,490

Net loss before other items (1,484,075) (1,415,374)
Subsidy from City of Dawson Creek 1,550,000 1,550,000

Income due (to) from the City of Dawson Creek (65,925) (134,626)

- -
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17 Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent liabilities represent items that, at December 31, 2017, are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position
because there is significant uncertainty at that date as to the necessity of the entity to make payments in respect of them.
Following are details of the more significant of these contingent liabilities.

115th Avenue Construction Waste Dump Site  

Usage of this dumpsite started in the 1960's as a dumpsite for construction waste. There was little or no control over the
types of substances being dumped at the site.  It wasn't until 1992 that the City took measures to ensure that only
uncontaminated wastes were to be deposited at this site.

At this time, the City is unable to determine if there is contaminated waste present at the site. In order to determine the
presence of contaminated waste, an environmental study would be required. Without this study, it is not currently possible
to estimate the cost  to remediate the site.

18 Funds held in trust 

The Cemetery Care Fund is restricted by legislation as to the principal amount; interest earnings are available for ongoing
maintenance of cemetery grounds as required. These funds are not included in the consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016

Opening Balance $ 288,746 $ 283,933
Additions 3,999 4,813
Interest Earned 3,330 2,716

296,075 291,462
Transfer to Cemtery Operations (3,330) (2,716)

Closing Balance 292,745 288,746

19 Line of Credit 

The City has a line of credit agreement with TD Bank of 75% of the whole amount of taxes levied in the preceding year.
There are no borrowings against the line of credit at December 31, 2017 and 2016. The line of credit bears interest at 0.5%
(2016 - 0.5%) above  the bank's prime lending rate of 3.2% ( 2016 - 2.7%).

20 Commitments 

Royal Canadian Mounted Police Services  

The Province of British Columbia and the Federal Government have an agreement with the Royal Canadian Mounted Police
to provide police services for various municipalities in the Province. This agreement has a 20 year term expiring March 31,
2032.
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21 Segmented Information 

The City has presented segmented financial information for services it provides to its citizens, which include Protective,
Transportation, Airport, Environmental Waste, Public Health & Welfare, Environmental Development, Recreation & Culture
and Water and Sewer services. For management reporting purposes, the City's operations and activities are organized and
reported by Service Area. Service Areas were created for the purpose of recording specific activities and related objectives in
accordance with legislated requirements.

General Government  

This category of functions is used to report activities that provide for the overall operations of The City, which is common to,
or affect all of the services provided by The City, including Council and legislative, general administration and finance
expenses.

Protective Services  

This category of functions is used to report activities that provide for the public safety of the residents and businesses of the
City, including police services provided by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, fire protection services, bylaw enforcement,
building inspection services, safety and animal control.

Transportation  

This category of functions is used to report activities related to the delivery of municipal public works services related to the
planning, development and maintenance of the streets and roads, bridges, drainage systems, street lights, traffic lights and
signals, parking lots and on-street parking, and public transit as well as maintenance of workshops, yards and other buildings.

Airport  

This function is used to report activities related to the Dawson Creek Airport, which is owned and operated by the City.

Environmental Waste  

This function is used to report activities related to the collection of garbage and other waste material.

Public Health and Welfare  

This function is used to report activities related to the cemetery maintenance and operations.

Environmental Development  

This function is used to report activities related to the preparation of land use plans, bylaws and policies for sustainable
development of the City and for reviewing and approving new land and building development.

Recreation and Cultural  

This function is used to report activities related to providing recreational and cultural opportunities for the community.
Facilities managed within this area include parks, playgrounds, arenas, the Encana Events Centre and the Dawson Creek
Public Library.
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21 Segmented Information (Continued) 

Water  

This function is reports on activities related to acquiring, supplying, treating and distributing water to the City. 

Sewer  

This function is reports on activities related to the removal, treatment and disposal of sanitary sewage. 
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21 Segmented Information (Continued) 

General
Government Protective Transportation Airport

Environmental
Waste

Public Health
and Welfare

Environmental
Development

Recreation
and

Cultural Water Sewer
Reserve
Funds

Capital
Funds

2017
Total

2016
Total

Revenue
Net Municipal Property Tax $ 16,232,098 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 16,232,098 $ 16,434,556
Grant in Lieu 813,076 - - - - - - - - - - - 813,076 709,594
Sale of Service - 758,060 121,434 453,029 701,324 39,526 7,000 1,141,061 - - - - 3,221,435 3,180,750
Other Revenue 1,278,176 - 256 - - - 85,051 1,090,719 - - - 752,561 3,206,763 3,764,589
Government Transfer 14,836,224 658,270 169,307 - - - 140,208 427,274 40,000 - - 4,279,378 20,550,661 18,545,865
Return on Investments 78,526 - - - - - - - - - 12,603 388,814 479,943 394,735
Amortization of Deferred Capital

Contribution - - - - - - - - - - - 1,658,992 1,658,992 1,658,992
Utility Fees - - - - - - - - 5,363,034 5,378,871 - 700,000 11,441,904 9,012,198
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets - - - - - - - - - - - (311,499) (311,499) (495,559)
Actuarial Adjustment - - - - - - - - - - - 750,855 750,855 646,392

33,238,100 1,416,330 290,997 453,029 701,324 39,526 232,259 2,659,054 5,403,034 5,378,871 12,603 8,219,101 58,044,228 53,852,112
Expenses

Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits 2,052,452 4,593,270 1,862,578 324,956 90,649 68,526 275,553 3,896,303 938,996 311,601 - - 14,414,884 13,977,965
Travel & Training 108,134 60,550 22,286 42,940 - - 7,542 32,914 22,938 665 - - 297,969 307,700
Advertising 36,319 2,272 440 7,738 1,447 - 13,579 15,801 - - - - 77,596 83,573
Community Grants & Sponsorships - - 25,500 - - - 7,000 246,706 - - - - 279,206 251,592
Consulting 38,229 12,464 94,778 - - - 157,823 8,489 155,534 53,857 - - 521,174 553,435
Contracted & General Services 721,978 3,255,283 1,753,915 222,878 628,963 2,345 681,669 2,553,102 343,272 381,454 - - 10,544,859 10,225,946
Material, Good & Supplies 252,345 132,255 383,615 314,166 10,065 8,157 35,284 1,210,112 457,933 97,263 - - 2,901,195 2,028,721
Repairs & Maintenance 19,372 135,565 41,284 76,457 - 1,687 - 222,237 322,995 201,529 - - 1,021,126 775,318
Equipment Pool Charge Out 32,832 10,927 402,836 127,685 20,784 12,036 3,985 281,549 114,354 61,761 - - 1,068,747 1,168,051
Telephone 54,120 11,294 9,719 14,726 - - 595 41,635 18,249 1,630 - - 151,968 137,849
Utilities 39,026 67,994 327,002 80,442 3,775 - - 786,520 317,951 190,059 - - 1,812,769 1,569,766
Insurance 130,914 19,081 17,138 43,045 - - 281 226,596 62,340 20,760 - - 520,154 498,643
Interest on Long Term Debt 57,219 - 423,411 - - - - 585,515 487,562 228,702 - - 1,782,408 1,818,954
Audit & Legal 102,577 - - - - - - - - - - - 102,577 142,370
Amortization 238,625 247,332 2,224,580 149,206 7,542 - 3,869 3,397,671 1,004,558 815,584 - - 8,088,965 7,949,958
Other operating expenses 89,519 9,464 28,237 16,494 - - 3,983 19,465 18,941 8,361 - - 194,465 220,941

3,973,659 8,557,750 7,617,319 1,420,733 763,224 92,751 1,191,163 13,524,616 4,265,623 2,373,224 - - 43,780,062 41,710,782
Annual Surplus (Deficit) 29,264,439 (7,141,421) (7,326,322) (967,704) (61,901) (53,225) (958,904) (10,865,561) 1,137,411 3,005,645 12,603 8,219,101 14,264,166 12,141,330

Per statement of operations and surplus totals
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